
ABABABAB    
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

TUESDAY 4 NOVEMBER 2008 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies For Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 

 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 September 2008 
 

1 - 6 

4. Streets Squares and Spaces Strategy (Public Realm Strategy) 
 

7 - 8 

 To consider the detailed designs for Cathedral Square. 
 

 

5. Peterborough Housing Register and Allocations Policy 
 

9 - 44 

 To consider and comment on the Housing Allocations Policy prior to its 
consideration by the Executive. 
 
 

 

6. Executive Decisions 
 

45 - 46 

 To note and consider any Executive Decisions taken since the last meeting 
that are relevant to the remit of this Panel. 
 
 

 

7. Forward Plan 
 

47 - 60 

 To consider the latest version of the Forward Plan. 
 
 

 

8. Feedback and Update Report 
 

61 - 62 

 To receive a standard report providing feedback on any issues or questions 
raised at previous meetings. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



9. Work Programme 
 

63 - 64 

 To agree the current work programme.  
 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Over (Chairman), J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman), S Allen, S Dalton, D Day, S Day 
and J R Fox 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: B Saltmarsh and P Winslade 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Gemma George on telephone 01733 
452268 or by email – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



  

AB 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL 

 HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2008 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillors Over (Chairman), D Day, S Day, J R Fox, S Dalton and Wilkinson. 
 

Officers in 
attendance: 
 

Gillian Barclay, Learning and Heritage Services Manager 
Kevin Tighe, Head of Cultural Services 
Heather Walton, Library and Customer Services Manager 
Chris Fisher, Head of Service Children and Families 
Liz Boome, Performance Scrutiny Officer 
Gemma George, Governance Support Officer 
Lindsay Tomlinson, Governance Support Officer 
 

 
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 

No apologies had been received. 
 

2. Minutes of the Meeting held 18 June 2008 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2008 were approved as a correct record. 

 
3. Declarations of Interest 
  

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4. A Sports Strategy for Peterborough 
 

The Panel received a report and a presentation outlining the Sports Strategy for 
Peterborough. Members noted that officers were exploring a recommendation to 
Cabinet which would include provision for a detailed feasibility study to be conducted 
to identify the best value solution to deliver future swimming provision across the city. 
It was proposed that this would be undertaken in partnership with Opportunity 
Peterborough in order to identify synergies between a potential city centre 
development (Embankment) and opportunities that could be deliverable through the 
Building Schools for the Future programme. The study would focus on the creation of a 
regional “flagship” sports and swimming facility and district swimming provision in the 
northern and southern districts of the city. Due regard would be given to the potential 
to incorporate the Lido into any Embankment development in order to secure its future 
and maximise its potential. 
 
The report also outlined the Sports Strategy Action Plan which set out a programme of 
work that would drive sport forward over the next five years in addition to swimming 
and other facility development initiatives. 
 

 Members were asked to consider and comment on the report and the following issues 
were raised: 

 

1



  

• Members questioned the future development of the facilities based at Jack 
Hunt Secondary School. Members were advised that there was no action plan 
in the strategy for this.  

• A query was raised regarding the possibility of offering free evenings at sports 
facilities to encourage youth participation. Members were assured that this 
suggestion would be carried forward. 

• Clarification was sought on the strategy’s next phase in securing a 50 metre 
swimming pool for the city. Members were advised that the next phase would 
be a recommendation to Cabinet for a detailed feasibility study to be carried 
out.  

• Members questioned the levels of funding that would be available for coaches 
etc. Members were informed that a sports development budget would be 
obtainable for these areas of funding. 

 
 ACTION AGREED: 
 
 The Panel noted the report. 
    
5. A Library Strategy for Peterborough 
  

 A report and presentation were submitted to the Panel for consideration. Members 
were advised that until 2002 it was a statutory requirement to submit an annual library 
plan to the Department of Culture Media and Sports. These were then succeeded from 
2003 to 2005 with library position statements for authorities that had not received an 
“excellent” overall in their CPA or a “good” and an “excellent” in their libraries and 
leisure score.  
 

 Since then there had been no published plan for the development of the Library 
Service, so the strategy would look towards modernisation and growth, building on 
current strong foundations such as excellence in customer service.  

 
The Library Strategy looked at a number of challenges which would face the service in 
the coming years: 

 

• Achieving the right level and quality of resources, services and facilities; 

• Having the flexibility of responding to and leading on community expectations and 
need and the city’s growth agenda; 

• Developing effective and efficient skilled staff, leadership and management; 

• Embedding ongoing improvement; 

• Ensuring recognition of the vital importance of public libraries to personal, family 
and community development, and how they contribute to the priorities of the city. 

  
 Twenty one key actions for the next five years, designed to address the challenges 

described above, were identified within the strategy and were grouped under four key 
headings; the offer, the staff, the space and service developments. 

 
 Members were asked to consider and comment on the report and the following issues 

were raised: 
 

• Members questioned the link between the falling numbers of visitors to libraries 
and the increase in accessibility to online facilities. Members were advised that the 
use of online resources had played a part in the decrease of visitors to libraries, 
but there were also other factors to take into consideration, for example temporary 
building works as at Orton Library. The Panel was further advised that even with 
the falling number of visitors, the overall number of books going out had in fact 
gone up. 

2



  

• Clarification was sought on the methods used to attract new customers. Members 
were advised that new adjustments would be implemented to capitalize on existing 
staff members. School visits, event days and guest authors were among some of 
the ideas already considered plausible. A further query was raised regarding 
authors visiting schools directly. The Panel was informed that the schools 
themselves would be directly responsible for organising those visits and the 
libraries would play no part in arranging them. 

• A query was raised regarding the scale of internet usage in the libraries across 
Peterborough and the whereabouts of the busiest libraries. Members were 
informed that across the board internet usage was decreasing slightly. It was 
stated that Bretton and Werrington were amongst the busiest sites in 
Peterborough. 

 
ACTION AGREED 

 
 The Panel noted the report. 
 
6. Promotion of Play  
 
 The Panel received a report outlining the proposed remodelling of play services across 

Peterborough including the allocation of 22 playbuilder sites and an application for 
Pathfinder funding. 

 
The development of an exciting and imaginative play service would contribute to three 
major themes of the corporate plan. It would help to achieve the best possible health 
and well being by developing play opportunities, where healthier socially inclusive 
communities could be encouraged. Developing play across the city would help make 
Peterborough a better place to live and work. Finally, providing good play areas would 
help ensure children were healthy and safe. 
 

   The Panel was asked to consider and comment on the report and the following issues  
 were raised: 
 

• Clarification was sought on the amount of consultation ward councillors would 
receive before any money was allocated to specific sites. Members were advised 
that 6 schemes were to be completed before the end of March 2009, and the 
consultation process for these particular sites had already been undertaken. The 
remainder of the sites were to be completed over the next 2 years.  

• A query was raised regarding the number of play sites already situated across 
Peterborough. Members were informed that the numbers were available and that 
the Open Space Strategy had been referenced with regard to available play areas. 

• Members questioned the need to upgrade existing sites and the guarantee of long 
term maintenance. Members were advised that community involvement was 
crucial.  Encouraging a sense of ownership in the local community may assure the 
site is cared for and protected. 

• Clarification was sought on the possibility of provision of a temporary beach next 
summer. Members were advised that there were no plans for this at the moment.
       

  ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel: 
 

(i) Noted and agreed the allocation of the 22 playbuilder sites;  
(ii) Considered the application for play pathfinder funding ready for submission on 

October 24th, and 
(iii) Noted and commented on the proposed remodelling of play services across 

Peterborough. 

3



  

 
 7. City Roots Festival 
 
 The Panel received a report for consideration at the request of the Chairman.  The City 

Roots Festival linked in to the corporate priority “Making Peterborough a better place 
to live and work” and the Local Area Agreement outcome of “Empowering local 
communities” and “Creating a vibrant City Centre”. There was no statutory requirement 
to provide arts and entertainment, however the City Council had, for many years, 
provided resources to deliver a wide range of events of an artistic nature. 

 
 At its meeting on 18th June 2008 Members of the Community Development Scrutiny 

Panel had endorsed a draft Cultural Strategy, it was noted in the strategy that the 
provision of such events as the City Roots Festival had involved significant investment 
of staff time and revenue resources.  

 
 Between 1999 and 2003 the City Council had delivered an event looking to promote 

emerging popular music. This event had evolved into the Willow Festival, which had 
been discontinued due primarily to health and safety issues. 

 
The City Roots Festival had three main aims. Firstly to deliver a safe event with a good 
atmosphere for young people, while also providing an excellent experience for family 
groups. Secondly it aimed to give a platform to local musicians, giving them the 
opportunity to work with a professional production in a large scale setting and in doing 
so providing a ladder for local musical talent. Thirdly it was to act as a pilot to explore 
the issues relating to this kind of event. 

  
 The views of the Panel were sought on all issues relating to the event but in particular: 
 

• The principle of repeating the event 

• The issue of charging 

• The principle of fencing such an event 
 
 The Panel considered the report and the following issues were raised: 

 

• Members questioned the possible reasons behind the poor attendance at the 
previous City Roots Festival, and whether the bad weather conditions and the 
ticket prices were to be held accountable in any way.  It was noted that there had 
been a previous event held in Itter Park where there was no charge for entry and 
5000 people had turned up in one day regardless of the weather conditions. With 
regard to entry fees, Members were advised that unfortunately this would be 
essential in order to cover costs for security, health and safety, fencing etc.  

• A query was raised regarding the possibilities of attracting local bands to play at 
the event for free. Members were informed that this had been achieved in the past 
at another local event, and if the format was successful then local bands would 
want to take part in the future. 

• Members discussed the apparent lack of promotion for the event and the impact of 
the pricing structure on the attendance figures for families. They further discussed 
the location of the event, stating that the embankment was a good venue but it 
would be reasonable to utilise less of it in future. 

• Concern was expressed regarding people bringing along their own alcohol to the 
event. Members were informed that alcohol would only be available inside the 
Festival boundaries. 

 
 ACTION AGREED 
  
 The Panel noted the report.  
 

4



  

8. Cultural Services – Customer Charging Policy Review 
 
 A report was presented to the Panel for consideration. The Council’s existing pricing 

policy for customer services was based on historical information. The rationale for 
charging had not been reviewed for a number of years. As part of the annual budget 
setting process charges were reviewed each year in accordance with budget setting 
guidelines approved by Cabinet. Traditionally charges were reviewed on the basis of 
the previous years cost, inflation, market trends, social and business impact. Whilst the 
charges were influenced by a number of factors the existing process did not readily 
align itself with corporate priorities and lead to significant variation across services. 
This lead to: 

 

• A variation in fees and charges across services 

• A different approach adopted by service areas in setting fees 
 

Whilst the arrangements in place had served the Council adequately, it was 
appropriate to establish a robust and transparent strategy that would meet the needs 
of the Council, assist wider inclusion and inform future investment in services. 
 

 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel: 
 

(i) Agreed the principle of establishing a small, time limited officer/member working 
group to explore a pricing policy framework for the cultural services provided by 
the Council, and 

(ii) Nominated Councillors John Fox, Sue Day and Samantha Dalton to sit on the 
working group. 

  
9. Executive Decisions 
 
 The Panel considered the following Executive Decisions made since the last meeting: 
 

• Response to the Government’s Sub National Review Consultation Paper 

• Supporting People Resettlement/Floating Support Contract 

• Delivery Sustainable Development – Southbank Phase 1 – Carbon Challenge 
Site 

• Growth Area Funds 2008-2011 

• Affordable Housing Fund Allocation for Woodston 

• Provision and Management of Sports Facilities at Bretton Park 
   
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel noted the report. 
  
10. Forward Plan 
 
 The latest version of the Forward Plan was presented to the Panel for consideration. 
 
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel noted the Forward Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

5



  

11.  Work Programme 
 
 The Panel received the latest version of the Work Programme for consideration. 
 
 It was noted that the agenda for the 4th November meeting was very full and officers 

were requested, where possible, to defer some items to future meetings of the Panel.  
 
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel noted the latest version of the Work Programme. 
 
12.  Date of Next Meeting  
 
 Tuesday 4th November 2008. 
 
  
 

The meeting began at 7pm and ended at 8.23pm 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
  
 

6



Community Development Scrutiny Panel 
 

Agenda Item No. 4 

4 November 2008 
 

Public Report 

 
 
Report Author - Liz Boome, Scrutiny Performance Officer 
Contact Details - 452324 
 
STREETS, SQUARES AND SPACES STRATEGY (PUBLIC REALM STRATEGY) 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

To advise members of the detailed designs for Cathedral Square proposed in the above strategy. 
 

2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 
AREA AGREEMENT 

 
This links to the priority outcome “to plan and deliver a safe, attractive and environmentally 
friendly city; and to make Peterborough a better place in which to live and work” and to the 
priority outcome of the Sustainable Community Strategy – Creating a safe, vibrant city centre and 
sustainable neighbourhood centres.  

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

At its meeting on 18 June 2008, the Panel received a presentation outlining the Public Realm 
Strategy (now re-named the Streets, Squares and Spaces Strategy).  Members’ views were 
sought on the strategy prior to the Council and Opportunity Peterborough proceeding to 
‘implementation phase’ of the public realm work, initially focusing on Cathedral Square.   
 
The Panel agreed that it wished to be engaged with the project as it progressed and welcomed 
the opportunity to consider detailed designs and timescales in due course. These have been 
prepared and the subject of wide consultation prior to and during their evolution. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 

An officer from Opportunity Peterborough will attend the meeting to advise the Panel of the 
detailed designs for Cathedral Square and give members an opportunity to comment. 

 

5. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

That the Panel and its Members continue to stay engaged with the Public Realm Implementation 
work as plans proceed for transforming Cathedral Square 
 

6. NEXT STEPS 
 

Members support for the transformation of Cathedral Square. 
 
7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
  

 The Streets, Squares and Spaces Strategy  
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Community Development Scrutiny Panel 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

4 November 2008 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Graham Murphy, Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Economic Development 

Contact Officer(s): Adrian Chapman, Head of Strategic Growth & Development 

Tracy Wilson, Interim Housing Options Manager 

Tel.  863887 

       864064   

 

PETERBOROUGH HOUSING REGISTER AND ALLOCATIONS POLICY  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM :  Officer Deadline date : 1st December 2008 

 
1. That the panel notes and approves the additions to the policy  
2. That the panel recommends to Cabinet the approval of the additions to the Peterborough 

Housing Register and Allocations Policy 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Community Development Scrutiny Panel following 
recommendation from the Peterborough Choice Based Lettings Board. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to draw the panel’s attention to proposed additions to the 
Peterborough Housing Register and Allocations Policy. 

 
2.2 This report is for Community Development Scrutiny Panel to consider under its Terms of 

Reference No. 3 [Cabinet Team to complete this section following liaison with 
Author]   [Do NOT include any other text under this heading]. 

 
3. TIMESCALE 
 
   

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

Major 
Policy 

If Yes, date for relevant 
Council Meeting 

February 2009 

  
 

 Date for submission to 
Government Dept 
(please specify which 
Government Dept) 

 n/a 

  
 
4. PETERBOROUGH HOUSING REGISTER AND ALLOCATIONS POLICY 
 
4.1 Background 
 
In accordance with the Housing Act 1996 Part VI (as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002), 
Local Authorities and/or agents administering the Local Authority’s allocations scheme must 
provide a Choice Based Lettings (CBL) scheme by 2010. Choice Based Lettings has been in 
operation in Peterborough since 2004. 
 

9



Choice Based Lettings aims to provide applicants with as much choice as possible by openly 
advertising vacancies and inviting applicants to express their interest in voids for which they are 
eligible. This system further aims to simplify existing allocations procedures and provide an open 
and transparent service to applicants. For the purposes of this CBL scheme, an applicant includes 
anyone seeking housing through the scheme, including existing tenants wishing to transfer. 

Peterborough City Council and the Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) listed below have worked 
in partnership with tenants and stakeholders to produce this common housing policy for allocating 
their properties in Peterborough. Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) are housing associations, 
regulated by the Housing Corporation, that provide affordable housing on a not-for-profit basis. 

Accent Nene 

Axiom Housing Association 
BPHA 
Circle Anglia 

Cross Keys Homes 
echg 
Home Housing 
Longhurst Homes 

Minster General Housing 
Association 
Muir Group 

Wherry Housing  

 

Instead of each organisation having its own housing register, the Council maintains a single 

housing register for Peterborough.  This makes it easier for applicants to find out about housing.  

Therefore, the likelihood of finding a home does not depend upon which landlord an applicant 

approaches. 
 
In general, the policy is considered fit for purpose and all proposed changes are of a minor nature 
to reflect the growth of the scheme. 
 
4.2 Proposed additions to current policy 
 
4.2.1 Unacceptable Behaviour – Rent Arrears (Addition to Section 4.2.3) 
 
This item has been added to give clarity to what constitutes an unacceptable level of arrears. 
Previously this has been determined on a case by case basis by officers. 
 
Policy addition 
 
Applicants who have four weeks arrears of rent (net of Housing Benefit) with an RSL or Local 
Authority will be given reduced priority for an offer of accommodation. 
 
Priority may be restored for applicants who enter an agreement to re-pay and maintain the 
agreement for at least thirteen weeks. 
 
Requests for review of decisions concerning rent arrears will be considered by a panel comprised 
of representatives from partner RSLs and Housing Options. 
 
4.2.2 Transfers (Addition to Section 5.2) 
 
This item has been added to encourage tenants to fulfil the requirements of their tenancy 
agreement. It will also assist in creating settled communities. 
 
Policy addition 
 
Applicants will not normally be allowed to register for a transfer until they have maintained their 
current tenancy satisfactorily for a period of 12 months. 
 
Requests for review of decisions concerning this policy will be considered by a panel comprised of 
representatives from partner RSLs and Housing Options. 
 
4.2.3 Choice Based Lettings (Addition to Section 8.5) 
 

10



This item has been added to further enable the authority to assess an applicant’s actual housing 
need. It will also serve to promote choice and prevent applicants continuously refusing properties 
which are available and reasonable for them to occupy. 
 
Policy addition 
Applicants who unreasonably turn down three offers of accommodation or who continually fail to 
attend viewings without good reason may be invited to an interview to discuss this.  
 
If this behaviour continues consideration can be given to by-passing the applicant on relevant 
shortlists. A decision to take this course of action must be ratified by a panel comprised of 
representatives from partner RSLs and Housing Options. 
 
5. CONSULTATION 
 
Proposed amendments to the policy were submitted in the first instance to the Choice Based 
Lettings Operations Group in May 2008. The group considered these recommendations and 
approved the revised policy in July 2008. The policy was then presented to and approved by the 
Choice Based Lettings Board in August 2008. Cllr Graham Murphy, Cabinet Member for Housing, 
Regeneration and Economic Development has also been consulted and supports the proposed 
amendments to the policy. 
 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
It is anticipated that the consideration of this report will result in the review and development of the 
Peterborough Housing Register and Allocation Policy, ensuring that it is Fit for Purpose and fully 
supported by Officers and Members.  The Housing Allocations Policy will provide an evidenced 
and resourced basis for meeting the housing needs of all households across Peterborough within 
market and resource constraints.  The policy will also evidentially support the following documents: 

 

• Sustainable Communities Strategy 

• Local Area Agreement 

• Core Strategy 

• Homelessness Strategy 

• Housing Strategy 
 
5.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The policy aims to: 
 

§ provide a single route of access to social housing in Peterborough by using a common housing 

register and a common allocation policy 

§ allocate social housing fairly and transparently, according to the applicant’s priority need 

§ meet the Council’s statutory duties in housing homeless persons  

§ prioritise nominations to RSLs and other Councils  

§ prevent the use of bed and breakfast accommodation for homeless families 

§ minimise the cost of homelessness to the Council and to Council tax payers 

§ maximise choice for applicants as far as possible, whilst acknowledging that housing is in short 

supply 

§ make effective use of the social housing stock in Peterborough 

§ maximise opportunities for mobility among tenants of social housing 

§ help build and sustain cohesive communities 

§ contribute to the speedy allocation of properties 

§ recognise and support individual needs where appropriate 

§ enable partner RSLs to meet their charitable objectives 

§ encourage and support sustainable communities 

§ encourage and support social and financial inclusion 

11



§ ensure applicants are treated fairly, individually and in accordance with the Partners 

commitment to Equality and Diversity 

§ provide timely feedback about homes let through the scheme 
 
6.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

The Authority has a statutory duty to maintain a fit for purpose allocation policy, hence maintaining 
the status quo and periodically revising and updating the policy is considered to be the most 
suitable option. 

7.  IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The policy will have implications for all sections of society and all wards and parishes of the 

local authority area. 
 
9.2 Financial Implications:  There are no immediate financial implications following from the 

approval of the policy. 
 
9.3 Cross-Service Implications 
 

The policy has many cross cutting themes and relies on inter-departmental and 
organisation working. All parties affected by proposed amendments to the policy have been 
consulted with.  Actions have been developed in partnership with affected parties. 

 
 
8.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

 
Peterborough Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2007 
Peterborough Housing Needs Analysis 2007 
Peterborough Integrated Growth Study 
Corporate Plan 2007-2010 
Sustainable Communities Strategy 
Local Area Agreement 
Draft Peterborough Core Strategy 
Regional Housing Strategy 2005-10 
Draft East of England Plan 
Code for Sustainable Homes 
Peterborough City Council’s Empty Homes Strategy 2006-2008 
Peterborough City Council’s Affordable Warmth Strategy 
Peterborough City Council’s Renewals Policy 
Peterborough City Council’s Rent Deposit Scheme 
Peterborough City Council’s Private Sector Leasing Scheme 
Peterborough Supporting People Five Year Strategy (2005 - 2010) 
Peterborough City Council’s Draft Planning Obligations Strategy 
Strategy for Older People’s Accommodation and Housing Related Support Services for Peterborough 
Allocation of Housing and Homelessness Regulations 2006 
Children Act 1989 

 Homelessness Act 2002 
Housing Act 1985 
Housing Act 1996  
Housing Act 2004 
Immigration Act 1971 
Immigration and Asylum Act 1999 
Local Government Act 2000 
Landlord and tenant act 1985 
Rent (Agriculture) Act 1976 
Homelessness Code of Guidance for Local Authorities (CLG: 2006) 
Sustainable Communities: settled homes; changing lives (ODPM: 2005) 
Preventing Homelessness; A strategy health check (CLG: 2006) 
‘More than a Roof’ (ODPM: 2002) 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Heath Act 2007 
Housing Green Paper- Homes for the future: more affordable, more sustainable 
Children and Young Peoples Bill 2007 
Hills Report into Social Housing (CLG: 2007) 
Cave Review (CLG: 2007) 
Housing Corporation ‘Design and Quality Standards’ 

12



Peterborough Residential Design Guide 
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
Peterborough Local Plan (First Replacement) 2005 

  
 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

The Common Housing Register and Allocations Policy 
for social housing in Peterborough 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Axiom Housing Association 
Cross Keys Homes 

Minster General Housing Association 
Nene Housing Society 

Peterborough City Council 

The Peterborough Housing Register 

15



2 

 

16



3 

Table of Contents 

 

1.  Introduction 

 

5 

2.  Aims 

 

5 

3.  Scope 

Annual Lettings Plan 

Allocations covered by the policy 

Allocations not covered by the policy 

 

6 

7 

7 

4.  Eligibility for Housing 

Who can join the housing register 

Unacceptable behaviour 

Local connection 

  Owner occupiers/ or people who own a property elsewhere and people with 

savings/capital 

Young people aged 16 and 17 

Keeping applications up to date 

 

7 

8 

9 

10 

 

10 

11 

5.  Information Required to Register 

Proof of identity and address 

Rough Sleepers 

Home visits 

 

11 

12 

13 

 

6.  How needs are assessed 

Reasonable preference 

Priority Bands 

Moves on medical grounds 

Applicants with a physical disability 

Applications from people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness 

Underoccupation 

Statutory overcrowding of a Partner RSL tenant 

Retiring or redundant Council or RSL service occupiers 

Key Workers 

Sustainable Lettings Policies: local people 

Indirect Exchanges 

Where there is no Right of Succession (when a tenant dies) 

Reduced priority to those in breach of tenancy condition 

Reduced priority for non local people 

 

13 

13 

14 

14 

14 

14 

15 

15 

16 

16 

16 

16 

16 

17 

 

7.  Sheltered Housing 

Who can register: conventional/Category 1 or 2 sheltered housing 

Who can register: extra care/very sheltered housing 

 

 

17 

17 

17



4 

Table of Contents (continued) 

 

8.  How Choice Works 

Choice Based Lettings 

The bidding process 

Other lettings 

Number of offers: non choice based lettings 

Property size and type 

Shared ownership 

Homeless households 

  

18 

18 

19 

19 

20 

20 

21 

 

9.  Social Services Supported Applicants 

Nominations 

Children leaving care 

  

22 

22 

 

10. Move On Accommodation 22 

 

11. Removal from the Housing Register 22 

 

12. Authorisation for an Offer 

Checking at point of allocation or choice based lettings bid 

Viewing properties 

Employees, Members of the Council, Board Members and their relations 

  

23 

24 

24 

 

13. Applicants Refused Admission to or Removed from the Register 

Re-application 

Notification of Refusal of Application 

Right to request a Review of the decision of ineligibility 

Applicants already on the list who became ineligible 

  

24 

25 

25 

25 

 

14. Witness Mobility Scheme 25 

 

15. Exercise of Discretion in Exceptional Cases 25 

 

16. Joint Tenancies 25 

 

17. Applicants who need to move on social or welfare grounds 

 

26 

18. Right to Review and Appeals 26 

 

Appendix 1: Priority Banding System 27 

 

Appendix 2: Bedroom Standards Policy 29 

 

 

18



5 

1. Introduction:  A single housing register for Peterborough 

 

Peterborough City Council and the Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) listed below have worked 

in partnership with tenants and stakeholders to produce this common housing policy for allocating 

their properties in Peterborough. 

 

Axiom Housing Association 

Cross Keys Homes 

Minster General Housing Association 

Nene Housing Society 

 

Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) are housing associations who provide affordable housing on 

a not for profit basis.  They are regulated by the Housing Corporation. 

 

Instead of each organisation having its own housing register, the Council maintains a single 

housing register for Peterborough.  This makes it easier for applicants to find out about housing.  

Therefore, the likelihood of finding a home does not depend upon which landlord an applicant 

approaches. 

 

Some allocations are not covered by this policy and this is explained later in this document. 

 

Housing is in short supply in Peterborough and waiting times are very long. We use this policy to 

allocate homes to those in greatest need. 

 

 
 
2.  Aims 
 
Through this policy we aim to 
 

§ provide a single route of access to social housing in Peterborough by using a common 

housing register and a common allocation policy 

§ allocate social housing fairly and transparently, according to the applicant’s priority need 

§ meet the Council’s statutory duties in housing homeless persons  

§ prioritise nominations to RSLs and other Councils  

§ prevent the use of bed and breakfast accommodation for homeless families 

§ minimise the cost of homelessness to the Council and to Council tax payers 

§ maximise choice for applicants as far as possible, whilst acknowledging that housing is in 

short supply 

§ make effective use of the social housing stock in Peterborough 

§ maximise opportunities for mobility among tenants of social housing 

§ help build and sustain cohesive communities 

§ contribute to the speedy allocation of properties 

§ recognise and support individual needs where appropriate 

§ enable partner RSLs to meet their charitable objectives 

19



6 

 
3.  Scope 

 

3. 1  Operation of the housing register 

The common housing register will be operated and maintained by Peterborough City Council on 

behalf of the Council and its RSL Partners. 

 

3.2  Nominations agreements 

The Council enters into nominations agreements with RSLs and the detail contained in these 

agreements is not affected or changed by this Common Housing Policy. 

 

3.3  Annual Lettings Plan 

An Annual Lettings Plan will be produced in consultation with the members of the Common 

Housing Register, covering: 

 

§ the percentage of void properties to be allocated between priority Bands as determined by the 

Council’s statutory duties and the charitable or other regulatory requirements of the partner 

organisations; 

§ the level of nominations to be offered to social services and any other organisations; 

§ the operation of the Homes scheme or any subsequent replacement scheme; 

§ the nominations to be made to key workers; 

§ targets and actions required to deliver fair and equal access to housing; 

§ the number of voids to be made available for those in designated, short term move on 

accommodation 

§ and any other operational issues. 

 

The Annual Lettings plan is bound by the contents of the Nominations Agreement. It cannot 

change the provisions in that agreement. 

 

The plan will be produced annually and reviewed quarterly at which point changes may be made 

to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Common Housing Register are met. In the event of 

a change in the ability of the Council to meet its statutory duties, or the ability of an RSL to meet 

its charitable and regulatory objectives, the plan may be reviewed as and when necessary. 

 

Any changes which amount to a change in policy will be subject to negotiation and ratification by 

the members of the Common Housing Register. 

 

For properties owned by Cross Keys Homes, the percentage of void properties to be allocated to 

transfers, housing register, management moves etc is determined by the nominations agreement 

agreed at the time of the stock transfer. 

20



7 

3.3  Allocations covered by the policy 

 

This policy sets out the arrangements for allocating social housing in Peterborough by the 

Council and its RSL partners. 

 

It covers the selection of applicants to be offered accommodation. 

 

§ by way of transfer to existing tenants of the RSLs who are members of the  

Common Housing Register 

§ by nomination to RSLs by the Council from the housing register 

 

3.4  Allocations not covered by the policy 

 

The following are examples of lettings not covered by this policy. 

 

§ Offers of assured tenancies of their current homes to starter tenants 

§ transfers of tenancies made by court orders 

§ assignment of and succession to tenancies 

§ mutual exchange of tenancies by assignment 

§ cases where the landlord requires the tenant to move 

§ transfers to existing tenants on management grounds where approved by the landlord 

§ temporary tenancies offered to homeless families whilst applications under the homeless 

legislation are investigated 

§ temporary moves (known as decants) to enable the landlord to carry out repairs and 

improvements 

§ Cross Keys Homes five per cent nomination rights for management moves for its existing 

tenants 

 
4.  Eligibility for housing 

 

4.1  The housing register 

 

The Peterborough Housing Register is a list of people looking for social rented housing in 

Peterborough. 

 

4.2 Who can join the housing register? 

 

Anyone aged 16 or over (including those with no fixed abode) may be placed on the housing 

register except 

 

§ people from abroad subject to immigration control or regulations 

§ people prescribed as ineligible by regulations made by the Secretary of State 

§ people the Council considers unsuitable to be tenants due to unacceptable behaviour 

 

21



8 

4.2.1  People from abroad subject to immigration control 

 

Applicants are excluded from the housing register if they are from abroad and are subject to 

immigration control under the Asylum and Immigration Act 1996, or by subsequent amendments, 

legislation or regulation by the Secretary of State unless they are 

 

§ already a secure or introductory tenant of the Council, or 

§ an assured or starter tenant of an RSL of housing allocated to them via a nomination by the 

Council to an RSL 

 

4.2.2 Regulations made by the Secretary of State 

 

From time to time the Secretary of State may make regulations which prescribe applicants as 

ineligible unless they are either 

 

§ already a secure or introductory tenant of the Council, or 

§ an assured or starter tenant of an RSL of housing allocated to them via a nomination by the 

Council to an RSL. 

 

4.2.3 Unacceptable behaviour 

 

In accordance with Section 160A(7) of the Housing Act 1996, the Council will not accept 

applications from an applicant where it is satisfied that behaviour has been unacceptable. 

 

Applications will not be accepted where the Council (or in the case of transfers, the relevant RSL) 

is satisfied that 

 

§ the applicant, or a member of his/her household, has been guilty of unacceptable behaviour 

serious enough to make him/her unsuitable to be a tenant of any Council, and 

§ in the circumstances at the time the application is considered he/she is still unsuitable to be a 

tenant as a result of that behaviour 

 

This includes behaviour by the applicant or anyone in his/her  household, and anyone living with 

or visiting the applicant, including children. 

 

4.2.3.1  Definition of unacceptable behaviour 

This is behaviour which, if the person concerned were a secure Council tenant, would entitle the 

Council to obtain a possession order against them. These are grounds 1 to 7 of Schedule 2 to the 

Housing Act 1985 and subsequent amendments. Such behaviour includes: 

 

§ failing to pay the rent 

§ breaking the terms of a tenancy agreement 

§ causing nuisance to neighbours or anti social behaviour 

§ being convicted of using the home for immoral or illegal purposes 

§ being convicted of an arrestable offence committed in, or in the vicinity of the home 

§ causing the condition of the property to deteriorate by a deliberate act, or by neglect 

§ making a false statement to obtain a tenancy 

 

22



9 

 

Any person who is refused admission to the register will be notified by letter giving grounds for 

the decision. The letter will be posted to their home or mailing address and will also be made 

available for collection for the appropriate Council or RSL office for a period of 28 days. There is a 

right of appeal and details are given  in section 17. 

 

A final check will be carried out before offers are made to ensure the eligibility criteria  

are still met. 

 

4.3 Local connection 

 

4.2.1 Definition of Local Connection 

 

The Council and its RSL partners have chosen, where appropriate, to give priority to people with 

a local connection.  The definition used is the local connection requirements of the Homelessness 

legislation. 

 

§ Applicants who have lived in the unitary authority of Peterborough for 6 months out of the last 

12 months, or 3 out of the last 5 years, unless they came to the area to attend an educational 

establishment 

§ Applicants who work in the district full or part time in permanent employment 

§ Applicants who have close family (parents, children, brothers, sisters and other family 

members if there is a particularly close relationship) who have lived in the district for at least 

the past 5 years, or  

§ Other special reason for living in the district 

 

Applicants who are leaving accommodation in the armed forces will be assessed on the basis of 

where their principal home was when they moved into forces accommodation. 

 

Applicants cannot build up a local connection through time spent in prison in Peterborough. 

 

Children for whom the Council is acting as corporate parent and who are placed outside the 

district will be deemed to have a local connection with Peterborough. 

 

4.3.2  Applications from non local people 

 

 Applicants who do not have a local connection will be placed in Band 5 unless they can 

demonstrate a need to move on social or welfare grounds to a particular locality, in which case 

the application will be placed in Band 2. 

 

4.3.3  HOMES and HEMS Schemes 

In return for the opportunity to nominate people from Peterborough to other boroughs through the 

HOMES (Homes, Mobility and Exchange) or HEMS (Housing Employment Mobility) schemes, the 

Council may accept a quota of people nominated for accommodation in Peterborough. 

23



10 

Eligibility will be assessed in accordance with this policy but rather than being placed in a Band, 

applicants will be offered a suitable property. The schemes will only be used to let properties 

where there is low demand. Unless there is a specific need, HOMES applicants will not have a 

choice of area, and only one offer of accommodation will be made. The percentage of void 

properties allocated to the schemes will be contained in the Annual Lettings Plan. At present, 

HOMES is mostly used for older persons in Peterborough but this will be reviewed annually in the 

Plan. 

 

4.3 Owner occupiers or people who own a property elsewhere and people with 

savings/capital 

 

Applications will be accepted, provided all other eligibility criteria are met. However, low or 

reduced priority will be given and applicants will be placed in Band 5 where it is determined that 

the applicant  

 

§ is adequately housed or  

§ has sufficient resources to finance the purchase of a suitable home (outright or by way of a 

mortgage) or 

§ has sufficient resources to rent privately and in the circumstances it would be reasonable for 

them to do so or 

§ could reasonably be expected to occupy a property that they already own. 

 

In determining reasonableness medical, disability, community care and other relevant needs will 

be taken into account. 

 

4.4 Young people aged 16 and 17 

 

Non dependent applicants aged 16 and 17 may join the housing register but priority will be given 

to cases where 

 

§ the Council has assessed that it has a statutory duty to provide accommodation 

§ the applicant is leaving the care of the local authority 

§ Social Services have assessed that accommodation, or supported accommodation is 

required. 

 

People under 18yrs can not legally hold a secure or assured tenancy so will be given different 

occupancy agreements until they reach 18yrs. 

 

4.6  Reciprocal arrangements 

 

Other Councils or RSLs who are not members of the common housing register may occasionally 

approach the Council or partner RSL asking for housing for a person outside the channels 

established by the policy by offering a reciprocal vacancy for a Council or RSL nominee. The 

Council or partner RSL may also occasionally initiate such arrangements. 

24



11 

The members of the Common Housing Register reserve the right to initiate, accept or refuse such 

arrangements, according to circumstances on behalf of the Council. However, such 

arrangements will be rare. 

 

4.7  Keeping applications up to date  

 

Applicants must notify the Council when their circumstances change. This also applies to tenants 

of member RSLs seeking to transfer. The Council will operate the register on behalf of the 

member RSLs.  

 

Approximately every twelve months, usually on a rolling programme, the Council will write to 

applicants asking them if they still wish to apply for housing, or to apply for a transfer. The Council 

will also ask for details of any change in circumstances or in preferences for accommodation. The 

applicant will be given 30 days from the date of receipt to supply the information requested. If 

applicants fail to respond in the specified period, or they indicate that they no longer want to apply 

for housing or a transfer, they will be removed from the housing register. 

 

4.8  Giving false information and fraud 

 

The Council and its RSL partners will take action where it is deemed appropriate in any cases 

where a tenancy has been obtained as a result of fraud or false information. The Council or the 

RSL may apply to the Courts for possession of the property and the subsequent eviction of the 

tenant. Action may be taken under the Housing Act 1996 which makes it an offence to knowingly 

or recklessly make a false statement or withhold information. A person guilty of an offence under 

this Section is liable to prosecution and a fine. 

 

 

5.   Information required to register 

 

5.1  Proof of  identity and address 

 

The Council will require proof of identity and proof of an applicant’s current address before it will 

accept an application onto the housing register. In the case of joint applicants proof will be 

required for both applicants. 

 

Applicants will normally be required to provide the documents listed overleaf. 

25



12 

 

PROOF OF IDENTITY AND ADDRESS 

 

Necessary Documents Comments 

Proof of identity Examples: birth certificate, passport, driving 

licence, identity card 

Proof of National Insurance Number Examples: pay slip, tax notification, National 

Insurance card 

Two forms of proof of your identity at your 

current address 

Examples: a bank statement, driving licence, 

utility bill, medical card 

If you are not a British citizen but a citizen from 

with the EU we will need to see your passport 

Legislation imposes some restrictions on the 

Council’s ability to assist or house people from 

abroad and this needs to be verified 

If you have been granted refugee status or have 

leave to enter or remain in the UK, you will need 

to bring your original Home Office documents 

with you 

Legislation imposes some restrictions on the 

Council’s ability to assist or house people from 

abroad and this needs to be verified 

If you are living with family or friends we will 

need their names and dates of birth 

 

Dependent children aged under 18 and in full time 

education 

We will need to see their birth certificates and 

your child benefit book or payment details  

 

Once proof of identity and address have been provided, and the criteria for registration met, the 

application will be placed on the register. Where priority is requested for various needs, for 

example, medical, community care, disrepair, harassment, the application may be registered but 

these needs will be recognised and assessed only when supporting evidence has been obtained. 

 

The Council may verify recent addresses by checking with an agency such as a credit reference 

agency.  

 

The Council will not register the application if it is not satisfied that the applicant has given 

sufficient proof of identity and address. 

 

Rough sleepers -the Council may consider letters of identity and referral from local agencies. 

However, the Council will need to be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate that 

the applicant has a right to reside in the United Kingdom, is not prohibited by regulation from 

accessing social housing and that the criteria for entry to the register are met. 

 

5.2 Applicant’s consent and declaration 

 

Applicants will be required to sign a declaration that: 

 

a) the information they have provided is true and accurate and that they will notify the 

Council of any change in circumstances immediately it occurs;  

b) they will be asked to declare any incidents of anti social behaviour that they (or 

people living with or visiting them) have been involved in either as a victim or 

perpetrator 

c) they consent to the Council verifying the information that they have provided. This will 

include checking with  

ò a credit reference agency to verify address, household and income details 

26



13 

ò checking with their previous and/or current landlords to establish whether tenancy 

conditions have been adhered to 

ò checking with the Council’s Community Safety team to verify any incidents of anti 

social behaviour 

 

If the above is not provided the applicant will not be registered because insufficient information 

will have been given. 

 

5.3  Home visits 

 

The Council or RSL may visit applicants in order to verify information and applicants may not be 

registered until this has taken place and any queries arising resolved. Visits may take place at 

any stage whilst an applicant is on the housing register in order to verify information provided. 

 

6.  How needs are assessed 

 
6.1  Reasonable preference 
 

In accordance with the Housing Act 1996 and subsequent amendments, reasonable preference 

will be given to applicants who fall into the categories below 

 

§ People who are homeless (including those applicants in the non priority groups and those 

who have been deemed intentionally homeless) 

§ People who are owed a duty by any local authority under Section 190(2), 193(2) or 195(2) of 

the Housing Act 1996 or who are occupying property secured by any authority under Section 

192(3) 

§ People occupying unsanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise living in unsatisfactory 

housing conditions 

§ People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds 

§ People who need to move to a particular locality in the Peterborough district, where failure to 

meet that need would cause hardship (to themselves or to others) 

 

5.2 Priority Bands 

 

Applicants who meet the eligibility criteria for registration will have their individual housing needs 

assessed and their application will then be placed in one of five priority Bands according to their 

circumstances. Where there is accumulation of need, they may be placed in a higher Band. The 

Banding scheme is attached in Appendix 1. The assessment may involve an interview or home 

visit. 

 

Tenants of partner RSLs wishing to transfer to alternative accommodation will be assessed in the 

same way. 

 

Allocation is firstly by Band order (Band 1 being first priority) and then by the date that the 

applicant was placed in that Band.   In the case of homeless applicants this means the date that 

the applicant is informed in writing that the Council has decided that it has a duty to secure 

accommodation for them, and not the date the applicant was placed in temporary 

accommodation. 

27



14 

 

Generally, tenants of RSL partners who wish to transfer will not be allowed to move unless their 

landlord is satisfied that there are no rent arrears, that the property is in good condition and that 

there are no breaches of tenancy conditions. 

 

5.3 Moves on medical grounds 

 

Applicants who feel they need to be housed on medical grounds will be required to complete a 

separate medical assessment form giving details of their health problems, how their current 

accommodation affects their condition and how rehousing will help. 

 

The Council will consider advice before determining the level of priority that will be given. The 

advice will be sought either from an internal suitably qualified or experienced officer such as an 

occupational therapist or from the Council’s medical adviser. The priority awarded will overriding, 

high, medium, low or nil. Applicants should note that whilst advice will be sought, the decision will 

be made by the Council. In some cases the Council may feel that in the circumstances it is not 

appropriate or reasonable to accept the advice. If this is the case reasons will be given. 

 
5.4 Applicants with a physical disability 

 

The Council may seek the help of an occupational therapist to determine whether a property is 

suitable.  

 

5.5 Applications from people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness 

 

Applications from people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness within 28 days will 

be assessed under the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002. 

 

Priority need applicants may be placed in temporary accommodation whilst their eligibility is 

assessed. If the Council accepts that the applicant is eligible for housing, in priority need and 

either homeless or threatened with homelessness unintentionally the Council may secure one 

reasonable offer of accommodation. This offer may be secured by the Council requiring the 

applicant to bid under the Choice Based Lettings Scheme; by the Council bidding on behalf of the 

applicant; by the making of an offer of tenancy through the Council’s nomination rights; or by 

securing a private sector tenancy. Secured through one of these sources, only one offer of 

accommodation will be made and this will be a final offer under Section 193(7) of the Housing Act 

1996. In this way, the Council will have discharged its duty - the applicant will be notified at the 

time of the offer of this and the consequences of refusal. 

 

5.6 Underoccupation 

 

Priority within the allocation scheme is awarded to tenants of RSL partner landlords who are 

underoccupying their home. Tenants underoccupying by 2 or more bedrooms will be placed in 

Band 1. Where a five bedroom property is underoccupied, additional priority may be given to 

release the property as soon as possible for allocation 

 

RSL partner tenants underoccupying by one bedroom will be placed in Band 2. 

28



15 

5.7 Statutory Overcrowding of a Partner RSL tenant 

 

If the tenant’s household is statutorily overcrowded as defined in Part 10 of the Housing Act 1985, 

(or any subsequent replacement legislation or regulations) they will be placed in Band 1 (urgent 

rehousing), except where they have caused the overcrowding by unreasonably inviting additional 

persons to live with them. 

 

Applicants overcrowded by two or more bedrooms will be placed in Band 1 even if the 

accommodation is not statutorily overcrowded. 

 

5.8 Retiring or redundant Council or RSL service occupiers (tied accommodation) 

 

A service occupier is someone occupying tied accommodation as a condition of their employment 

with the Council or with a partner RSL (who is a member of the Common Housing Register) for 

the better performance of their duties. 

 

When a service occupier retires, is made redundant,  leaves after a reasonable period of service 

(other than as a result of disciplinary investigations or proceedings), or is no longer required to 

occupy the accommodation for the better performance of his/her duties,  he/she will be made one 

suitable offer provided they meet the eligibility criteria for registration onto the register, do not own 

a property elsewhere which is, or could be, available for their occupation, and it is not reasonable 

for them to purchase a home. Where the property is required quickly to enable the new 

postholder to carry out the essential requirements of their job description, additional priority may 

be awarded and an offer made as soon as possible. 

 

Service occupiers who are dismissed for misconduct, who resign as a result of disciplinary 

investigations or proceedings, who fail to satisfactorily complete probationary periods or who 

resign within a year of appointment will not receive any additional priority as a result of having to 

leave a service tenancy. 

 

Former service occupiers will not normally be rehoused in schemes or establishments in which 

they were employed, or in the locality of such schemes. 

 

In all cases of rehousing from tied accommodation, the unacceptable behaviour test will be 

applied and applicants will be required to meet the criteria for entry to the register as specified in 

Section 4. 

 

Only one suitable offer will be made. Note will be taken of the applicant’s choice of area and 

property type, but it may not be possible to meet these. The property will be required urgently for 

the postholder. If the offer is refused, possession proceedings will be commenced and the 

applicant removed from the Council’s housing register. If the applicant re-applies to go on the 

register, no further offers will be made whilst the applicant remains living at this address. Note 

will, however, be taken of individual and any changed circumstances. 

 

Applicants will need to be aware that the Housing Corporation normally prohibits the housing of 

former employees unless this is a contractual right. In these cases, it will be necessary to 

29



16 

nominate to a different RSL and this could, depending upon demand for that RSL’s housing, 

result in a longer waiting time. 

 

5.9 Key Workers 

 

The Council is working with a number of partners to deliver affordable housing for key workers. 

The arrangements for the nomination will be contained in a separate Key Worker Policy 

document which the Council will negotiate with its partners, and will be subject to separate 

consultation. Priorities under these schemes will be defined in the individual schemes that are 

produced. 

 

5.10 Sustainable Lettings Policies 

 

In rural areas, there may be some sites where planning permission and/or funding was given 

subject to a condition that the development should be for local people. In such areas, priority will 

be given to local people. 

 

This policy contains provision to maximise choice and this is seen as a key step in achieving 

cohesive communities (See “Offering Communities Real Choice – Lettings and Community 

Cohesion” from the Chartered Institute of Housing). 

 

5.11 Indirect Exchanges 

 

Mutual exchanges by assignment are not governed by this policy. An indirect exchange occurs 

when one tenant is offered a vacant property, which will then enable a chain of exchanges to take 

place and to free up a much needed property. Such indirect exchanges will be allowed only at the 

discretion of the Housing Options Manager where they best make use of all properties involved 

and where it is reasonable to do so, taking into account supply and demand issues. 

 

5.12 Where There is No Right of Succession (following tenant’s death 

 

In cases where there is no statutory or contractual right of succession, requests are often 

received from those remaining in the property to be granted the tenancy. The designated officer 

may agree to such requests after taking into account how long the applicant has lived in the 

property as their sole or principal home, the size and type of the property, particularly any 

underoccupation, whether there are special facilities or adaptations which would be unused, 

whether the applicant benefits from any local support networks and any other relevant issues. 

However, in all cases, the applicant will be required to meet the criteria for entry to the housing 

register as specified in Section 4. 

 

5.13 Reduced priority to those in breach of tenancy condition 

 

The Council will reduce priority to applicants who breach their tenancy conditions. For example, 

tenants of partner RSLs who have rent arrears in excess of one month’s gross rent or who have 

broken their tenancy agreement in other ways, such as damaging the property or engaging in anti 

social behaviour, will not receive offers of a transfer or have bids accepted unless there are 

special circumstances. 

30



17 

5.14 Reduced priority for non local people 

 

Applicants who live outside Peterborough other than those who need to move to a particular 

locality on social and welfare grounds, thereby qualifying for Band 2, will be placed in Band 5. 

 

7.  Sheltered Housing 

 

7.1 Conventional/Category 1 or 2 Sheltered Housing: Who Can Register? 

 

Applicants will need to be eligible to register on the Council’s housing register as specified in 

Sections  4  and 5.   Priority will be given to applicants with a local connection in accordance with 

paragraphs 4.3.1 and 4.3.2.    Applicants who do not have a local connection will be placed in 

Band 5 unless they can demonstrate a need to move to a particular locality on social or welfare 

grounds, in which case, the application will be placed in Band 2.   

In addition, applicants should generally: 

 

§ Be aged 60 or over and retired from full time employment (younger persons, for example 

aged 55 and above, may be accepted on to the housing register for sheltered housing where 

individual need is demonstrated, such as having a physical disability or community care 

need); 

§ Be able to live independently with the support that can be provided; 

§ Be willing to accept support services provided by the landlord or outside agencies and be 

able to benefit from the environment provided; 

§ Need the support that sheltered housing (for example its warden, alarm system and 

environment) can provide; 

 

Applicants’ housing need will be assessed taking the above into account and their application will 

be placed in the appropriate Band. 

 

7.2 Extra Care/Very Sheltered Housing: Who Can Register? 

 

In addition to the above, applicants for this form of housing will require assistance with daily and 

or personal care and support tasks but will be able to care for themselves and live independently 

with the support of community care services such as home care and meals on wheels. The needs 

of carers and their ability to cope and provide the support required will also be taken into account. 

 

A joint housing and community care assessment will be carried out by a panel of professionals 

dealing with the case, (for example, housing, health, social care) who will recommend allocation 

on the basis of individual need. The Banding system will not be used. Priority will be given to 

those applicants at greatest risk as a result of living in unsuitable accommodation where 

adequate support cannot reasonably be provided, who are requiring discharge from hospital or 

who would otherwise have to go into residential or nursing care. 

 

Priority will be given to applicants with a local connection in accordance with paragraphs 4.3.1 

and 4.3.2.   Applicants who do not have a local connection will be placed in Band 5 unless they 

can demonstrate a need to move to a particular locality on social or welfare grounds, in which 

case, the application will be placed in Band 2.   
 

31



18 

8.  How Choice Works 

 

8.1 Choice Based Lettings 

 

When the Council becomes aware that a property is due to become available for allocation, an 

assessment will be carried out to determine whether the empty property will be allocated through 

the choice based lettings procedure. In the majority of cases, properties will be let through the 

choice based lettings scheme and applicants will need to bid for the home they wish to secure 

rather than waiting for the Council to make them an offer when they reach the top of the list. 

 

The partner RSL will specify if a property is to be let through choice based lettings or through the 

traditional route of being offered to the applicant with the highest priority. Where properties are 

offered through a traditional route, an available property will be designated for allocation to a 

particular Band in accordance with the Annual Lettings Plan. Where properties are offered 

through choice based lettings, priority will be given to applicants in greatest housing need. This 

means that Band 1 applicants will receive priority. If there are no qualifying bids from that Band, 

priority will then be given to Band 2 applicants, and then subsequently, Bands 3, then 4  

and then 5. 

 

8.2  Some Properties Will Be Reserved For Transfer 

The Council will, in accordance with its lettings plan and the nominations agreement agreed with 

Cross Keys Homes at stock transfer, designate some properties as being available only for 

existing RSL tenants who wish to transfer. In the majority of cases, offers will not be made and 

applicants will need to bid for a property. 

 

8.3     The Bidding Process 

 

Properties available will be advertised and applicants may bid for up to three properties within the 

timescale specified.  In the case of vulnerable applicants or those with support needs, the Council 

may bid on behalf of the applicant if it is considered that the property is suitable. 

 

The three applicants with highest priority, taking account of the bedroom standard and property 

type criteria (see Appendix 2) will be selected to view. Priority will be by date order of the 

applicant being placed in that Band. For example, three applicants from the relevant Band would 

be chosen to view. If all three expressed an interest in the property and the Banding dates were 

2001, 2002 and 2003, the property would be offered to the applicant who had been placed in that 

Band in 2001. If they turned it down, it would then be offered to the applicant who had been 

Banded in 2002. If they turned it down, it would be offered to the applicant who had  

been Banded in 2003. 

 

Properties will not normally be offered to applicants who do not express an interest unless they 

are statutory homeless or the Council or RSL requires them to move. 

 

Where historically the property types takes longer than average to let, more than three applicants 

may be invited to view. 

 

32



19 

If there are no successful bids, a further selection of three applicants from the original 

advertisement may be made and offered the opportunity to view. Alternatively, the property may 

be re-advertised, depending upon the timescales and the need to let properties quickly. 

 

Where there is low demand (or there has been more than two refusals) the property may be 

offered to a lower priority Band or the bedroom size requirement relaxed. This supports the aim to 

relet properties effectively and quickly. 

 

8.4 Other Lettings 

 

Applicants may choose the areas in which they wish to live. However, if accommodation is in 

short supply in the area chosen, the applicant will have to wait for a significant period (usually 

several years unless in Band 1) and may be asked if they wish to widen their choice of area. 

 

Applicants may register for all areas if they wish. 

 

Applicants may choose the type of property they require, but houses are generally allocated to 

families with dependent children. Applicants cannot choose properties larger than they need and 

the bedroom standard will apply. 

 

8.5 Number of Offers 

 

Where properties are offered through the traditional route (i.e. by offer rather than by the 

applicant bidding) and the Council allocates the property to the person with the highest priority, 

there is no penalty if the offer is refused and no limit to the number of offers that will be made 

unless 

 

§ The applicant is statutorily homeless; or 

§ Is homeless and in temporary accommodation; or 

§ Is required to leave a service or tied tenancy; or 

§ The policy specifies that in the particular circumstance only one offer will be made 

 

in which case only one reasonable offer will be made and the applicant will be removed from the 

housing register. Applicants in temporary or tied accommodation will be required to leave at the 

expiry of their notice period and to find their own accommodation.   The application will be re-

assessed based on the new accommodation and any applicant who is still homeless will be 

placed in Band 2 of the register rather than Band 1. 

Where applicants do not make a bid under the choice based lettings scheme, generally no priority 

is lost as a result of not bidding or turning down an offer following a successful bid. However, if 

the applicant is in one of the above categories, the Council may bid on their behalf. If the 

applicant refuses the tenancy, no further offers will be made, and the applicant will be required to 

move out of the temporary accommodation and the above re-assessment criteria will apply. 

33



20 

8.6  Property Size and Type 

 

8.6.1 Size 

 

The size of property will be in accordance with the Bedroom Standards Policy which is attached 

in Appendix 2. 

 

Exceptions may be made to the size rules where 

 

§ The Council is satisfied that medical advice has established that a larger property is required 

on medical grounds; 

§ In cases where a carer is required to live with the applicant in order to prevent entry into 

residential care or hospital; 

§ Tenants of landlords who are part of the common housing register who are underoccupying 

properties of four or more bedrooms – one bedroom in excess of their assessed need may be 

allowed; 

§ The property has been refused twice and demand is low; 

§ Other exceptional cases approved as below: 

∗ In the case of transfers of existing tenants partner RSLs, approval by the designated 

officer. 

In the case of housing register or homeless applicants, approval by the Council’s designated 

officer. 

 

8.6.2 Type and Area 

 

Certain properties may be designated for occupation by particular groups, or designated as not 

appropriate for certain applicants, either temporarily or on a longer term basis, including flats 

designated for occupation by elderly or disabled persons; temporary accommodation for 

homeless families; to address the particular management needs of an area; or to ensure that the 

Council facilitates the development of diverse and sustainable communities. For example, some 

RSLs have developed accommodation for BME tenants (black and minority ethnic) and priority 

will be given on this basis. 

 

Bungalows and ground floor flats are in short supply.  Preference is usually given to applicants 

with mobility, disability or other special support needs.  In some cases, it may be necessary to 

allow a bedroom for a live in carer.   

 

From time to time, it may be necessary for the Council to restrict the offers of accommodation it 

makes to families, in order to meet the child density rules required by the Housing Corporation, or 

to meet the management needs of an area in order to build sustainable and balanced 

communities. 

 

8.6.3 Shared Ownership 

 

Applicants who wish to be considered for shared ownership dwellings will be required to show 

that they can afford and obtain a mortgage to the required level. 

 

34



21 

Applicants will need to demonstrate they cannot afford to buy a property of a suitable size in 

Peterborough on the open market. The following will be considered: 

 

§ Income of applicant(s) 

§ Essential expenditure 

§ Purchase price 

§ Whether the combined housing costs are 35% or less of the applicant(s)’ net income 

§ Any special circumstances relating to the applicant 

 

Once these factors have been determined, priority will be assessed in accordance with this 

policy. The applicant with greatest housing need will be nominated for the property. In the event 

that the shared ownership property is let by choice based lettings, the applicant with the greatest 

housing need will be selected. 

 

8.7  Nominations 

 

When RSLs request a nomination from the Council, they often require more than one applicant to 

be put forward. Applicants need, therefore, to understand that a nomination may not result in an 

offer being made. 

 

8.7 Homeless households 

 

Applicants who are accepted by the Council as being statutorily unintentionally homeless and in 

priority need will be placed in Band 1. In most cases temporary accommodation will have been 

provided. 

 

Applicants who are homeless but not in priority need or who are intentionally homeless will be 

placed in Band 2. 

 

Homeless applicants in Band 1 must bid for suitable properties. Applicants cannot remain in 

temporary accommodation delaying bids until their preferred property becomes available. Where 

applicants fail to bid, the Council may either nominate to an RSL to secure a tenancy or bid on 

their behalf. 

 

If the applicant subsequently refuses the offer of a tenancy, provided the offer was suitable in 

terms of size and property type and any special needs,  the Council will have discharged its 

statutory homeless duty to them. 

 

If the applicant is in temporary accommodation secured by the Council, a notice to quit will be 

issued and the applicant will need to find their own accommodation. 

 

If the applicant wishes to remain on the housing register, the application will be reassessed 

based on the individual circumstances. If the applicant had been placed in Band 1, the 

reassessment may result in their being placed in a lower priority Band because they will no longer 

receive homeless priority as the Council will have discharged its statutory duty. 

 

35



22 

9.  Social Services Supported Applicants 

 

9.1 Nominations 

 

Nominations will be given to Adult Social Care (now part of the Greater Peterborough Primary 

Care Partnership) and Children’s Social Services between them as below: 

 

§ Nominations may be made to the Council for one, two or three bedroom properties 

§ The eligibility criteria for entry on to the register must be met. The unreasonable behaviour 

test will be applied. 

§ The nomination must be authorised by the Head of the Division (for example, Head of Adult 

Social Care, or Head of Children’s Services or their equivalent). 

§ Offers will be made outside the Banding system and within a reasonable time, usually within 

3-6 months. Choice of area will not normally be possible, although account will be taken of a 

need for a particular locality. Where it is agreed that a particular locality is required, the 

waiting time is likely to be longer. Although the applicant will be given priority, it will not 

always be possible to offer the next available property as there may be competing cases with 

similarly high priority. 

§ Appropriate care packages must be in place before an offer can be made. 

 

The Annual Lettings Plan will review this arrangement and will consider the number and type of 

properties to be made available for the coming year.  In year one up to four properties will be 

made available.  When reviewing the operation of this clause regard will be paid to housing need 

pressures. 

 

9.2 Children Leaving Care 

 

The Annual Lettings Plan will contain details on the numbers of properties that may be offered to 

this client group. Generally, the Banding system will not be used and instead, one suitable offer 

will be made. In cases where the Council has been the corporate parent, children will be offered a 

tenancy when they leave care and will not be required to enter temporary accommodation. 

Children placed in care outside the district will be deemed to have a local connection. 

 

10.  Move On Accommodation 

 

There are a number of establishments in the district that provide accommodation of a short stay 

nature with a view to the applicant moving on.  

 

The Annual Lettings Plan will contain provisions to allocate a percentage of void properties to this 

group.  These allocations will be made outside the Banding system but applicants will still be 

required to meet the entry criteria for the housing register.  Nominations will be made by 

Landlords on the basis of who is most ready to move on, in terms of being able to cope with 

independent living. 

 
11.  Removal from the Housing Register 

 

Applicants will be removed from the list in the circumstances below: 

 

§ If one or more acts of unacceptable behaviour occur after an applicant has been accepted. 

36



23 

§ The applicant is living in a service tenancy or tied accommodation provided by a partner RSL 

and has refused an offer of accommodation. 

§ Applicants who cease to meet the eligibility criteria for entry to the register as specified in 

Section 4. 

 

Where the Council has reason to believe that an applicant has become ineligible, it will inform the 

applicant in writing. The applicant will be given 28 days to provide information showing that he or 

she is eligible. If no reply is received within this period, or the Council receives a reply but is not 

satisfied that the applicant is eligible, the application will be removed from the housing register. 

 

12.  Authorisation For An Offer 

 

12.1 Checking at the Point of Allocation or Choice Based Lettings Bid 

 

When an offer is about to be made, or a choice based lettings bid accepted, a final check will be 

carried out to ensure that the applicant is still entitled to receive the offer. In particular, the Council 

will consider the following: 

 

§ Whether there are rent arrears in excess of one month’s rent (this may not apply to homeless 

applicants in temporary accommodation or someone waiting for housing benefit). If so, no 

offers will be made until the debt has reduced as required. 

§ Whether the applicant or someone who lives with them or who visits them has committed acts 

of unacceptable behaviour such as anti social behaviour serious enough to make them 

unsuitable to be a tenant of a partner RSL. In such cases, the applicant will be removed from 

the register. 

§ Whether the applicants (other than those who are already tenants of partner RSLs) are 

considered to have sufficient financial resources to buy a property within the district. If this is 

the case, and the property is in demand, the offer will not be made. 

§ Whether the applicant has deliberately disposed of property or other assets, including 

savings, to avoid the criteria in the above paragraph. In such cases, the offer will not be made 

and the applicant will be removed from the list. 

§ In cases where the applicants are considered to have voluntarily worsened their 

circumstances within the previous 12 months, with the effect of increasing their priority under 

the Allocation Scheme, no offer will be made. 

§ Partner RSL tenants whose property is in poor state of decoration or in need of repair that is 

the tenant’s responsibility (other than those in Band 1) for example caused by neglect or 

damage. In such cases, tenants will be required to bring their properties up to a reasonable 

standard before an offer will be authorised. However, elderly or disabled tenants may be 

exempt from this requirement, as may others with special circumstances. 

§ Whether, in the case of a transfer of a partner RSL tenant, vacant possession will be given. 

An offer will not be made until the landlord is satisfied that vacant possession will be given. 

§ In cases where the applicant has given false information in order to receive priority, no offer 

will be made until a reassessment has been carried out. The void property will not be held 

whilst this is done and will be offered to the next highest priority applicant. 

 

Authorisation for an offer may be withdrawn at any time if it comes to the Council’s attention that 

an applicant who has been authorised for an offer falls into any of the above categories. Where 

appropriate applicants will be removed from the list. 

37



24 

12.2 Viewing Properties 

 

Under the choice based lettings scheme, information published on available properties includes 

the date upon which viewings will take place. Once bidding has closed, a shortlist of, normally, 

three applicants will be invited to view. If applicants cannot or do not subsequently attend, their 

bid will not be considered further. The property will be let to the applicant with the greatest priority 

determined in accordance with this policy. 

 

Where a property is being offered through the traditional, non choice based lettings route and a 

tenancy is subsequently offered, the successful applicant will be notified of the viewing date and if 

they are unable to attend, or fail to attend, the offer will be deemed to have been withdrawn. 

 

Regard will be paid to special circumstances. 

 

12.3 Employees, Members of the Council, Board Members and Their Relatives 

 

All housing applicants will be required to declare whether they or any of their household or 

relatives work for the Council, or a partner RSL, or are an elected Member/Councillor or RSL 

Board Member. 

 

The terms relative and household include: 

 

§ Anyone living with the applicant as a partner, or as a member of their household 

§ Natural/adoptive/step parents 

§ Natural/adoptive/step children 

§ Brothers and sisters 

§ Daughters or sons in law 

§ Grandparents 

§ Aunts and uncles 

§ Cousins 

§ Estranged spouses or partners, regardless of whether they live as part of the applicant’s 

household. 

 

Applicants’ applications or priority level will not be affected. 

 

Applicants to whom any of these descriptions apply will be required to have their offer authorised 

in writing by the designated officer. 

 

13.  Applicants Refused Admission to or Removed from the Register 

 

13.1 Re-application 

 

Any person refused admission may re-apply when he or she considers that the Council should no 

longer treat him/her as ineligible. The Council will consider the application on its merits and will 

consider whether there has been a change in relevant circumstances. It will be for the applicant 

to show that his/her circumstances or behaviour have changed substantially, and unless they are 

able to do so, admission is likely to be refused. 

38



25 

13.2 Notification of Refusal of Application 

 

Any person who is refused admission to the list will be notified of this by means of a letter sent to 

their home or mailing address, giving grounds for the decision. The letter will also be made 

available for collection from Bayard Place for a period of 21 days. 

 

13.3 Right to Request a Review of the Decision of Ineligibility 

 

Applicants excluded from the list on ground of ineligibility may request a review of the decision. 

 

13.4 Applicants Already on the List who Became Ineligible 

 

If at any time the Council obtains information that leads it to believe that an applicant already on 

the housing list is ineligible, they will be removed from the list. Such applicants will have a right to 

request a review of the decision. 

 

14.  Witness Mobility Scheme 

 

The Council and its partner RSLs support the witness mobility scheme and may consider at its 

discretion referrals made to house witnesses. The Banding system will not be used and one  

reasonable offer will be made. When making the decision to accept, the Council will take into 

account the level of risk the applicant is facing and the demand and supply issues at the time in 

Peterborough. 

 

It will be necessary for the applicants to meet the eligibility criteria for entry on to the register in 

accordance with section 4 of this policy, and the proof of identity requirements in section 5.  

Priority will be given to local people in accordance with paragraphs 4.3.1 and 4.3.2. 

 

15.  Exercise of Discretion in Exceptional Cases 

 

Exceptional circumstances will be taken into account and priority awarded by the designated 

officer according to the individual needs of the applicant. One example would be exceptional 

cases where the composite overriding housing needs justified immediate or more urgent 

rehousing. Other examples include placing an applicant in a higher priority Band or allowing 

tenants with rent arrears to transfer.  The Council and its partners will ensure that they do not 

fetter its discretion and will treat each case on its merits. 

 

16.  Joint Tenancies 

 

The Council and its RSL partners encourage joint tenancies. Both the parties to a joint tenancy 

must individually qualify to be placed on the housing register. Joint tenancies will not normally be 

offered to parents and children in order to prevent future underoccupation. Generally partners will 

be required to accept joint tenancies. 

 

Applications will be accepted from same sex households and joint tenancies will be granted. 

 

39



26 

17    Applicants who need to move on social or welfare grounds 
 
Applicants who need to move on social or welfare grounds to a particular locality, for example, to 
give or receive care from someone, will be placed in Band 2. 
 
18     Right to Review and Appeals 

 

Applicants dissatisfied with a decision that has been made, including a decision to refuse entry to 

or remove them from the register, may request a review of the decision. The Review will be 

carried out by a panel of officers who were not involved in the original decision, and who are 

senior to the officer who made the original decision. 

 

Requests for a review must normally be made in writing within 21 days of the date the decision 

was notified to the applicant, and should include the applicant’s reasons for believing that the 

decision made was inappropriate.  

 

Extensions to the 21 days will be allowed where justified by special circumstances.  

40



27 

 
APPENDIX 1: PRIORITY BANDING SYSTEM 
 
Providing the eligibility criteria for entry to the register are met, an application will be placed in 
one of the bands below.  The Bands are listed in priority order with Band 1 being the highest. 
 

Band 1  

§ Overriding medical or community care priority 

§ Property demolished due to disrepair or compulsory purchase 

§ Property deemed unsuitable (by the Council’s Private Sector Housing team) for habitation due to 

disrepair, stability or lack of amenities 

§ Statutory overcrowding as defined in the Housing Act 1985, unless caused deliberately 

§ Accepted as homeless, in priority need, , and the Council has not yet met its duty to secure 

accommodation in the public or private sector 

§ High medical priority and substantial disrepair (assessed by Medical Advisor and Environmental 

Health) 

§ The Council is satisfied that the applicant (or a member of their household) has medical priority  

  and is a victim of harassment, or 

  violence, or 

  abuse, or 

  is at significant risk of harm 

§ RSL tenant overcrowded by two or more bedrooms 

§ Rehousing required to avoid child being taken into care 

§ Underoccupation of RSL partner property by more than 2 bedrooms 

 

Band 2   

§ Accepted as threatened with homelessness (including tied accommodation, agricultural workers, 

others on service tenancies) 

§ Intentionally homeless 

§ Overcrowded by 2 bedrooms (not partner RSL tenant) 

§ Other Homeless including non-priority groups and those who have refused a reasonable offer of 

accommodation in the public or private sector resulting in the Council discharging its homelessness 

duty 

§ Harassment /violence/abuse/other risk (proven) – including young people at risk 

§ High medical or community care priority (including requiring heating on health grounds/need 

adapted property) 

§ Lacking any or all of:  internal toilet, bathroom or kitchen facilities  

§ Partner RSL tenant overcrowded by one bedroom 

§ Medium medical and disrepair 

§ Shared facilities (kitchen/bathroom/toilet/cooking/living) and insufficient bedspaces for the 

household 

§ Medium disrepair (repair notice) 

§ Underoccupation of partner RSL property (one bedroom surplus) 

§ Sheltered tenants of partner RSLs wanting to move to alternative sheltered accommodation or to 

move within the same sheltered scheme 

§ Separated family due to no suitable accommodation 

§ Need to move on social or welfare grounds, including needing to move to a particular locality (cared 

for/carer; children leaving care, education/training; specialist medical treatment; needing or giving 

support; move to or from supported housing; job reasons) 

41



28 

 

 

Band 3  

§ Medium or community care medical priority 

§ Overcrowded by one bedroom (not partner RSL tenant) 

§ Low medical priority and disrepair 

§ Low disrepair 

§ Need to move on from recognised short-term accommodation (existing agreements) 

§ Shared facilities but sufficient bedspaces 

§ Child under 7 years living on 2
nd
 floor or above 

 

Band 4 

§ Generally the current accommodation is of the right bedroom size and has all facilities 

§ Low medical priority 

§ Reciprocal arrangements with other local authority or RSL 

§ Child under 7 years living on 1
st
 floor or ground floor in flat or maisonette 

 

Band 5 

§ Applicants who do not have a local connection with Peterborough unless they need to move to a 

particular locality on social and welfare grounds 

§ Applicants with sufficient resources to purchase a property (outright or by way of a mortgage) or 

who can afford to rent privately 

§ Owner occupiers who: 

∗ are adequately housed, or 

∗ have sufficient resources to finance the purchase of a suitable property (outright or by way of a 

mortgage), or 

∗ have sufficient resources to rent privately and in the circumstances it would be reasonable for 

them to do so, or 

∗ own or rent a property elsewhere which it would be reasonable for them to occupy. 
  
 

42



29 

 

APPENDIX 2: BEDROOM STANDARDS POLICY 

 
Please note that some properties are designated for occupation by certain groups of people.  
For example, in the case of bungalows or ground floor flats, preference is given to households 
with mobility or disability needs.   Please read the policy in full for an explanation. 
 

Studio Flat Single Person 

  

One bedroom flat / two person 

flatlet / 1 bedroom bungalow 

Couple without children 

Single person (subject to demand) 

  

Two bedroom Ground / 1st floor 

flat / maisonette, house or 

bungalow 

Couple with medical need for 2 bed (flats or bungalows only) 

Applicant with 2 children of same sex (under 10 yrs) 

Applicant with 2 older children of same sex (if requested) 

Applicant with 1 child 

2 Adults of same sex who need ground or first floor accommodation 

(flats, bungalows only) 

Applicants expecting their first child (subject to demand) 

Single person (flats only subject to demand) 

Couple without medical need for 2 bed accommodation (flats, 

bungalows only - subject to demand) 

  

Three bedroom ground / first 

floor flat / maisonette, house or 

bungalow 

Applicant with 3 children 

Applicant with 2 children of opposite sex 

Applicant with 2 children of same sex (preference to families where 

age difference is 5 years or more or one child is over 10 years) 

  

Three bedroom 2nd floor flat / 

maisonette 

Applicant with 1-3 children all over 7 years 

Applicant with up to 3 younger children (if requested) 

Couples and single people (subject to demand) 

2/3 single applicants wishing to share 

  

Three bedroom parlour / 

 parlour- type house 

Applicant with a need for a ground floor bedroom, or applicant with 4 

or more children 

  

Four bedroom house Applicant with 4 or more children 

  

Larger dwellings Larger properties are in very short supply. 

The same method of grouping adopted above will be used. The 

Council will aim to allocate on the basis that children of the same 

sex will be required to share a room, and a separate bedroom will be 

allocated (where possible) where a child is over 10 years or there is 

a five year age gap 

43



30 

 

44



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Agenda Item No. 6 

4 NOVEMBER 2008 

 

Public Report 

 
 

Report of the Director of Strategic Resources 
 
 
Report Author – Liz Boome, Performance Scrutiny Officer 
Contact Details – Tel: 01733 452324 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this report is to notify the Panel of the Executive Decisions which 
have been taken and which relate to the Panel’s remit. 

 
2. EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE SINCE THE LAST MEETING 
 

2.1 Peterborough Public Realm Strategy  
 

Cabinet considered the Public Realm Strategy (now renamed the "Streets, 
Squares and Spaces Strategy") which, if agreed by Council, would become 
part of the Council's Major Policy Framework as a strategy to 
improve/redevelop an area of the city. The strategy examines the background 
and context to the city centre's public realm; sets out strategic aims and 
objectives; identifies different character areas and the design principles that 
should apply to each one; establishes principles for the use of materials and 
detailing; and makes proposals for management and maintenance. 
 
There are 10 principles underlying the strategy: 
 
§ The re-attachment of the railway station to the historic core 
§ The re-attachment of the river to the city centre 
§ A fine grain - small units and many doors 
§ A vibrant place in the evening as well as in the day 
§ Residents in the city centre 
§ A city centre designed for cyclists and walkers 
§ Places to sit and places to eat 
§ Public spaces as informal arenas 
§ Public spaces as arenas for festivals and events 
§ A public realm that is distinctively Peterborough 
 
CABINET RESOLVED TO: 
 
Agree the Streets, Squares and Spaces Strategy as the Authority's overall 
strategy for improvements to the public realm of Peterborough city centre and 
recommend the approach to Full Council. 

45



Reasons 
 
The Strategy is recommended for approval as part of the package of 
measures which contribute to two of the Council's strategic priorities – to plan 
and deliver a safe, attractive and environmentally friendly city; and to make 
Peterborough a better place in which to live and work.  It will contribute to the 
priority outcome of the Sustainable Community Strategy – Creating a safe, 
vibrant city centre and sustainable neighbourhood centres. Improvements to 
the public realm have also been demonstrated to contribute to the economic 
growth of cities, with measurable impact on surrounding property values. 
 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
The alternative option is not to produce and approve a Public Realm Strategy.  
This was rejected because, if there was no strategy, the state of the public 
realm would continue to deteriorate; the quality of the environment in 
comparison to that of neighbouring cities would deter shoppers, tourists, 
visitors and businesses; individual works in the public realm would be carried 
out in an ad hoc fashion, producing an incoherent city centre; and the 
potential to capture contributions to public realm improvements through 
planning obligations would be reduced. 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Implications are contained within each individual decision notice. 
 

4. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

The Panel is asked to consider the Executive Decisions which are relevant to the 
remit of the Panel and which have been made since the last meeting and if felt 
appropriate, to identify any decisions they may wish to examine in more detail. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985 

  

 Executive Decision notices from 17 September 2008. 
 
 
 

46



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Agenda Item No. 7 

4 NOVEMBER 2008 

 

Public Report 

 
 

Report of the Director of Strategic Resources 
 
 
Report Author – Liz Boome, Performance Scrutiny Officer 
Contact Details – Tel 01733 452324 
 

FORWARD PLAN – 1 NOVEMBER to 28 FEBRUARY 2009 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

For the Panel to note the latest version of the Forward Plan; agree any areas for inclusion within 
the Panel’s work programme and submit any observations concerning the Plan to the Executive. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 

This is a regular report to the Community Development Scrutiny Panel, outlining the content of 
the Council’s Forward Plan. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 

 
4.2 The Panel may wish to include some of the items highlighted on the Plan onto their future work 

programme or to request additional information from the Executive before a decision is made.  
Any comments about the format of the Plan would also be welcomed.   

 
4.3 In accordance with the Council’s Executive procedure rules, the Cabinet or Cabinet Member will 

not make any key decision until at least five clear days after the receipt of the report relating to 
that decision.  The Group representatives of the Scrutiny Committee are sent a copy of these 
reports at the same time as the Cabinet Member and any comments can be passed onto the 
Member before a decision is made. 

 
4. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 

That the Panel notes the latest version of the Forward Plan; agrees any areas for inclusion within 
the Panel’s work programme and submits any observations concerning the Plan to the 
Executive. 

 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
  

 Peterborough City Council’s Forward Plan  -  1 November to 28 February 2009. 
 
 
 
 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



     
      

P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 

  

1
  N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
 T
O
 2
8
 F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 2
0
0
9
 

49



 

 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 –
 1
 N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
0
8
 T
O
 2
8
 F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  A

B
 

 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 2
8
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 

b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 

a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 a
re
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 m

o
n
th
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 p
la
n
s
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 

p
la
n
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
n
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 L
in
d
s
a
y
 T
o
m
lin
s
o
n
, 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 

4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 l
in
d
s
a
y
.t
o
m
lin
s
o
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
3
8
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

v
ie
w
e
d
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
p
ie
s
 m

a
d
e
. 
A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
. 
  
If
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
. 

 
 N
E
W
 I
T
E
M
S
 T
H
IS
 M

O
N
T
H
: 

 

•
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

•
 

F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 (
P
P
D
C
) 

•
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 B
a
s
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

•
 

L
ib
ra
ry
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
4
 I
n
p
u
t 
to
 R

e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
R
S
S
) 
R
e
v
ie
w
  

•
 

T
o
u
ri
s
t 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

   

  

50



 

 
N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

D
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

E
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
In
te
re
s
t,
 

F
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
h
a
s
e
s
. 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

G
o
ld
s
p
in
k
 

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
in
g
 B
o
d
y
 

o
f 
B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 D

e
p
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
. 
 

 

J
o
h
n
 R
ic
h
a
rd
  

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l 
0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
6
0
1
 

jo
h
n
.r
ic
h
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

M
id
la
n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 A
ll
ia
n
c
e
 

- 
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 8
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 

S
ig
n
a
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 

T
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
  
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

 

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

C
h
ri
s
 B
e
rr
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 

T
e
l.
 0
7
9
7
6
 6
1
9
9
0
6
 

c
h
ri
s
to
p
h
e
r.
b
e
rr
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

M
id
la
n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 A
ll
ia
n
c
e
 

- 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

S
tr
e
e
ts
, 
S
q
u
a
re
s
 a
n
d
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 

T
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

 

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

C
h
ri
s
 B
e
rr
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 

T
e
l.
 0
7
9
7
6
 6
1
9
9
0
6
 

c
h
ri
s
to
p
h
e
r.
b
e
rr
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
v
il
io
n
 

T
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 

b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 R

iv
e
rs
id
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
v
ili
o
n
. 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 R

e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
  

P
a
u
l 
S
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
7
5
 

p
a
u
l.
s
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

51



 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
C
o
rn
 

E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 (
if
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
) 
o
f 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
it
e
. 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
rn
 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
W
a
rd
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
0
 

a
n
d
re
w
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

H
e
lt
w
a
te
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 –
 A
w
a
rd
 o
f 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
a
n
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

 

A
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 c
o
n
s
is
ti
n
g
 o
f 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
d
 

te
a
c
h
e
r,
 p
a
re
n
t 
g
o
v
e
rn
o
r,
 

a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
lis
o
n
 C

h
a
m
b
e
rs
 

A
s
s
e
t 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
5
 

a
lis
o
n
.c
h
a
m
b
e
rs
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
  

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 a
 

th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 s
u
p
p
lie
r 
to
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 b
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 a
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

In
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 A
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

th
is
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

d
e
s
ig
n
. 

 

N
ic
k
 B
a
rr
a
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
IC
T
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
9
1
5
 

n
ic
k
.b
a
rr
a
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

52



 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 
R
a
te
s
 f
o
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
C
iv
il
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

W
o
rk
s
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
1
0
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
r 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

S
tu
a
rt
 M

o
u
n
fi
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
8
 

s
tu
a
rt
.m

o
u
n
fi
e
ld
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

T
o
 s
e
e
k
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
w
a
rd
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

fo
r 
th
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
 

3
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
c
o
lle
g
e
s
, 

p
a
re
n
ts
, 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

 

R
o
d
 G

ra
n
t 

In
te
ri
m
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
4
0
1
2
 

ro
d
.g
ra
n
t@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

N
e
n
e
 B
ri
d
g
e
 

R
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

  

A
ll 
u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
, 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 R

a
il,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 C
ra
n
w
e
ll 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
0
4
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.c
ra
n
w
e
ll@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
e
n
tr
e
 (
P
P
D
C
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fu
tu
re
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
c
o
tt
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

W
a
rd
 C

o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

   

53



 

 

 
D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
  

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

in
v
o
lv
in
g
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m

e
m
b
e
r 

fo
ru
m
s
. 

G
ra
e
m
e
 L
a
w
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G

ro
w
th
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
2
5
 

g
ra
e
m
e
.l
a
w
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

M
o
v
in
g
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 P
C
T
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

  

P
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  
to
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
; 
H
A
S
C
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

D
e
n
is
e
 R

a
d
le
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

0
1
7
3
3
 7
5
8
4
4
4
 

d
e
n
is
e
.r
a
d
le
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

D
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 D
ra
ft
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

54



 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 B
a
s
e
  

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 N

o
 

fo
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

L
ib
ra
ry
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

T
o
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 f
u
ll
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
8
4
 

k
e
v
in
.t
ig
h
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
p
o
rt
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 f
u
ll
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
8
4
 

k
e
v
in
.t
ig
h
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
4
 I
n
p
u
t 
to
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

(R
S
S
) 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 R

e
g
io
n
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 

2
0
3
1
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

C
o
ll
in
s
 a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
M
u
rp
h
y
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
la
n
d
 a
g
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
e
 

R
o
b
 B
ro
w
n
 

A
re
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ro
b
e
rt
.b
ro
w
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

55



 

  

 
J
A
N
U
A
R
Y
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

T
o
u
ri
s
t 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
to
u
ri
s
t 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
L
e
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

s
ta
ff
, 
tr
a
d
e
s
 u
n
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

 

L
in
d
a
 W

ill
s
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
3
5
 

lin
d
a
.w
ill
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

   

56



 

    

 
F
E
B
R
U
A
R
Y
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 C

h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D

ra
ft
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 C

a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 f
u
ll
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 f
o
llo
w
s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

d
ra
ft
 M

T
F
S
, 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(L
A
A
) 
 

T
o
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

L
A
A
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 H
u
m
a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

P
e
a
c
h
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 f
o
ra
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 A
s
tl
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 G

re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
5
0
4
2
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
@
g
p
p
-p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.o
rg
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O

ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

57



 

   C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G

ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
u
m
a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R

e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
ru
g
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
T
e
a
m
 

 C
IT
Y
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
N
u
rs
e
ry
 L
a
n
e
, 
F
e
n
g
a
te
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
  
P
E
1
 5
B
G
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 &
 M

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C

o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC

T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

 

58



 

 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
ri
d
g
e
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
T
o
w
n
 B
ri
d
g
e
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
B
 

 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 8 

4 NOVEMBER 2008 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Liz Boome, Performance Scrutiny Officer Tel. 452324 

 

 

FEEDBACK AND UPDATE REPORT 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This is a regular report to the Community Development Scrutiny Panel as agreed as part of its 
work programme. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 This report provides feedback on items considered or questions asked at previous meetings of 
the Panel.  It also provides an update on matters which are of interest to the Panel or where the 
Panel have asked to be kept informed of progress.   

 

3. COMMUNITY CONTACT CENTRES FUNDING  

 

3.1 At its 17 June 2008 meeting, the Panel was advised that a funding bid for £200,000 had been 
submitted to the Supporting People programme in order to further support and develop the 
Contact Centres.  An update on progress to date is outlined below: 

 
3.2 Contact centres at Orton, East, Welland and Westwood have been funded through grant funding 

in 2008/09. 
 

3.3 This intervention enabled all but Welland to exist until the end of the current financial year.   
Unfortunately the application for additional funding from the Supporting People programme was 
unsuccessful. 

 

3.4 Welland (Partnership House) ceased to exist on 31 August 2008.  The operators, Compass, were 
unable to continue to provide the service without additional funding.  The property has been taken 
back into Cross Keys Homes stock.  Discussions involving PCC, Greater Dogsthorpe Partnership 
and Cross Keys have been held to ensure that any services that used the venue as a base have 
alternatives in the area from which to operate.  The Area Housing Office, the Blue Mobile, the 
GDP Office and the Charteris Centre may be able to provide alternative venues. 

 

3.5 The Council have made it clear to all Contact Centres that there will be no additional funding in 
either the current year or in future years beyond this allocation.  We are therefore exploring other 
support, probably advice from the Development Trusts Association or similar organisation, who 
can provide expertise in relation to business planning, sustainability, income generation, social 
enterprise development, grant funding and similar.  The initial meeting is to take place on 10 
October to explore this fully and identify the requirements to ensure that the support is the most 
appropriate available.  The cost for this is to be met from existing funds. 

 
4. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 Update report from Community Services. 

61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 3
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
7
 –
 2
0
0
8
 

 
D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

to
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 
T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm
s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
-2
0
1
1
 

T
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 i
ts

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
K
a
re
n
 W
h
a
tl
e
y
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

o
lic

y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

T
o

 i
n
it
ia

te
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 

th
e

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

R
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 i
ts

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
R
o
s
e
m
a
ry
 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 

P
o
lic

y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

T
o

 i
n
it
ia

te
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 

th
e

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

R
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 –
 C
o
re
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 P
re
fe
rr
e
d
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

T
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 i
ts

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
e
te
r 
H
e
a
th
-B
ro
w
n
 

C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 

P
o
lic

y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

T
o

 i
n
it
ia

te
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 

th
e

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

R
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 

2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 

(D
e
s
p
a
tc
h
 

o
f 
p
a
p
e
rs
 –
 

1
8
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
) 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 –
 M
in
e
ra
ls
 a
n
d
 W
a
s
te
 C
o
re
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 &
 S
it
e
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

T
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

M
in

e
ra

ls
 a

n
d

 W
a
s
te

 C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 S
it
e

 
S

p
e
c
if
ic

 P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 O
p

ti
o
n

s
 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 i
ts

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
e
te
r 
H
e
a
th
-B
ro
w
n
 

C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 

P
o
lic

y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 

T
o

 i
n
it
ia

te
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 

th
e

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

R
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

 

 

63



64

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 September 2008
	4 Streets Squares and Spaces Strategy (Public Realm Strategy)
	5 Peterborough Housing Register and Allocations Policy
	081104 - Community Development Scrutiny Panel - Peterborough Housing Register And Allocations Policy - Appendix A

	6 Executive Decisions
	7 Forward Plan
	081104 - Community Development Scrutiny Panel - Forward Plan Appendix A

	8 Feedback and Update Report
	9 Work Programme

